
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

July 9, 2018 
6:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Sgt. Randall Jones, Vestavia Hills Police Department and Vestavia Hills 

Chaplain 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Candidates, Announcements and Guest Recognition 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Approval of Minutes – June 18, 2018 (Work Session) and June 25, 2018 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

New Business 

9. Resolution Number 5068 - Alcohol License – A&A Discount Liquors D/B/A Vestavia 

Package Stores For The Off Premise Sale Of Liquor (Package Store); Naresh Nath Banala 

And Srianil Kumar Peddi, Executives  (public hearing) 

10. Resolution Number 5071 - Alcohol License – El Zunzun Restaurant; 4105 Crosshaven 

Drive; For The On-Premise Sale Of 020 – Restaurant Retail Liquor; Rebecca Satterfield, 

Executive   (public hearing) 

11. Resolution Number 5072 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 

And Authorizing The City Manager To Sell/Dispose Of Said Property 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

12. Ordinance Number 2774 – Rezoning – 1557 Holly Road; Lot 6, Younes Addition To 

Shades Cliff; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-2 To Vestavia Hills R-4 For Construction Of 

Two Single-Family Homes; Chris Salter, Owner   (public hearing)  

13. Ordinance Number 2776 – An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2476 To 

Authorize The Mayor And City Manager To Execute And Deliver An Addendum To 



Video Services Agreement With Bellsouth Telecommunications LLC D/B/A AT&T 

Alabama  (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2777 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Delivery A Supplemental Agreement With Gresham Smith And Partners For 

Additional Design On Pedestrian Bridge   (public hearing)  

15. Resolution Number 5073 – A Resolution To Dedicate Certain Streets, Roadways And 

Rights-Of-Way In Liberty Park To The City Of Vestavia Hills Subject To The Provisions 

Of A Certain Maintenance Agreement   (public hearing)   

16. Ordinance Number 2778 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver A Maintenance Agreement With Liberty Park Joint Venture 

Following Acceptance Of Dedication Of Streets, Roadways And Rights-Of-Ways As 

Dedicated By Resolution Number 5073     (public hearing)   

17. Resolution Number 5074 – De-Annexation – A Portion Of Lot 1, Healthsouth 

Headquarters Addition To Liberty Park (MB 243, MP 1) In Order To Clear Up Municipal 

Boundaries; Healthsouth, Owner   (public hearing)   

18. Citizen Comments   

19. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

JUNE 18, 2018 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular work session on this date at 
6:00 PM following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called the 
meeting to order and the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce, Councilor 

 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul J. Head, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Danny Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Johnny Evans, Police Captain 
 
 

COMMUNITY SPACES PLAN 
 

 Mr. Downes gave a background of the Community Spaces Plan and introduced Ken 
Upchurch, TCU to update the Council on the implementation of that part of the Plan. 
 
 Ken Upchurch stated that they have been meeting with design consultants 
concerning all design work that needed to be done with the TCU managed plans.  He 
indicated that they are working with experienced designers and are meeting weekly in order 
to stay consistent on the plan, the timing of the projects, etc.  He explained that that constant 
meetings helps them to stay aware to ensure there are no delays within the design work. 
 
 Mr. Upchurch explained the need for the City to issue purchase orders for geo-tech, 
surveys, etc., quickly and consistently through the end of July in order to allow these 
designers to stay on que with needed and accurate information.  TCU managed projects 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

include Wald Park, Gold’s Gym, Cahaba Heights, New Merkle, Crosshaven and grant 
funding for SHAC.  TCS managed plans are estimated at $43,959,971.  Detail of the 
estimates were presented to the Council for review.  He stated that the other City managed 
projects are estimated at $14,150,000 for a total of $58,109,971.  The detail showed some 
grant funding of $750,000 netting the total to $57,359,971. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained the funding, early payoff, cash flows, etc. 
 
 The Mayor asked about monthly reporting. 
 
 Mr. Upchurch stated there would be monthly reporting to the Council. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that because of the consistency and timing of the purchase 
orders for the design, that the Council would consider funding up to $4.8 million to cover 
the professional fees and services and would give them the ability to get certain projects 
proceeding in a timely manner. 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at6:31 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 25, 2018 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JUNE 25, 2018 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in special session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Paul Head, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Jason Hardin, Deputy Police Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 

Jim Cartledge, Vestavia Hills Chaplain, provided the invocation followed by the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Kym Prewitt and James Robinson, Vestavia Hills Chamber of 
Commerce members. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that Gold’s Gym will be departing the adjacent property and a 
walkthrough will occur on June 29 to determine if any repairs needed to be made prior to 
their departure.  Mr. Downes stated that reconstruction will occur following a design 
period.  He explained that the property has 10,000 square feet already set up with offices 
and storage areas.  He indicated that some of the displaced Public Works employees will 



City Council Minutes 
June 25, 2018 

Page 2 
 

be placed there for a temporary period of time.  He explained that prior to the renovations, 
the building may be utilized for activities that can temporarily be moved to the location 
following the departure of Gold’s Gym. 

 Mr. Downes indicated that he and staff will be discussing traffic calming suggestions at 
the next work session.  He explained that there have been a number of studies responsive 
to complaints and the staff will be proposing a traffic calming policy.  He stated that he 
like to introduce this to the Council collectively next Monday along with suggestions for 
implementation of this policy. 

 Mr. Downes reminded everyone that City Hall will be closed on July 4 in observance of 
Independence Day. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 
 

 Mrs. Cook provided the following report: 
 

“The Superintendent reviewed some organizational changes, which include the hiring of 
a new Asst. Superintendent of Operations and Services. Dr. Patrick Martin, one of our 
recent superintendent candidates and previously the Supt. of Gardendale City Schools, 
will start in this position, effective July 2. 
 
The Superintendent is interviewing candidates for the Director of Technology and 
Director of Student Services and should have those recommendations for the board’s 
consideration in July. 
 
The Superintendent shared the draft annual report, but this will not be finalized until 
late summer, after all the metrics have been gathered. He mentioned that he is still 
working on updates regarding implementation of the system’s strategic plan. 
 
The Superintendent shared a new parent volunteer procedure that will require some 
school parent volunteers to undergo a background check. The draft policy states the 
background checks will be run by Background IQ, which was formerly Bullet Screening.  
In the discussion of this topic, the Supt. indicated the details are still being worked out, 
but this will likely apply to parents chaperoning overnight school trips and that the 
system will work to ensure the $12 background check fee will not be a burden to anyone 
wanting to volunteer. Board member Jennifer Weaver mentioned the background check 
service is the same one used by Vestavia Hills sports leagues. 

 
I understand the Supt’s rezoning recommendation will be presented in July.” 
 

 Mr. Pierce announced regular Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce board meeting last 
Thursday which centered on planning for the I Love America Day beginning June 28 at 6 
PM.  He read the various highlighted activities and invited everyone to attend. 



City Council Minutes 
June 25, 2018 

Page 3 
 

 The Mayor reminded everyone of the informational seminar of Crimes Against the Elderly 
to be held on August 7.  He stated that flyers are located in the back of the Chamber and 
asked anyone interested to attend. 

 Mr. Weaver stated that P&Z met to discuss two rezoning requests that will be coming to 
Council soon. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director presented the financial reports for month ending May 
2018.  He read and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the May 21, 2018 (Work Session) were presented for approval. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the May 21, 2018 (Work 

Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second by Mr. 
Pierce.   Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 

The minutes of the June 11, 2018 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the June 11, 2018 (Regular 

Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second by Mrs. 
Cook.      Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5066 
 

Resolution Number 5066 - Authorizing The City Manager To Execute Supplemental 
Agreement For Neel Schaffer For Additional Design Work For Massey Road   
(public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5066 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 25, 2018 

Page 4 
 

 Mr. Downes explained that this project has been a long running project managed through 
ALDOT and was preliminarily approved.  However, another level of ALDOT approvals were 
delivered required a supplemental agreement with the designing consultant to update the designs 
pursuant to ALDOT’s requirements.  He explained the frustrations of working through these 
funding agreements and the processes in order to be able to complete a project.  ALDOT 
anticipates a bid date in Spring/Summer of 2019.  This allocates an additional $60,000 with the 
City funding a $12,000 share of this amount. 
 
 The Mayor stated that the original agreement designed sidewalks on Columbiana toward 
Hwy 31.  Mr. Brady explained. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about timeline.  Mr. Brady estimated 6-8 months for construction. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked if the project can be expedited.  Mr. Downes stated that no matter how 
much you expedite these projects, ALDOT still has to review and you still have to await their 
approvals.  He commended ALDOT on a newer process that does keep these projects from 
backing up, but there is still a wait on their review and approval. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5067 
 
Resolution Number 5067 - A Resolution Declaring A Weed And Other Vegetation Nuisance 

Pursuant To Ordinance Number 2567 And Directing The City Manager To Abate 
Said Nuisance For Property Located At 704 Rockbridge Road   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5067 was made by Mr. Weaver and second 

was by Mrs. Cook.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that Sgt. Coleman received complaints on this property and 
summoned the owner pursuant to the weed abatement code for tonight’s public hearing .  He 
indicated that the property owner has not responded to the request to abate the nuisance.  This 
would enable the Compliance Officer to hire a contractor to bring the property into compliance 
and a lien will be placed on the property and filed with the Tax Collector for collection. 
 
 The Mayor explained the background of this type of request and the enforcement of earlier 
issues. 
 
 The owner was not present to represent this case. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 25, 2018 

Page 5 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2772 
  
Ordinance Number 2772 - An Ordinance Granting A Non-Exclusive Right-Of-Way Use 

Agreement To Access Fiber Group, Inc. For The Purpose Of Constructing, 
Installing, Maintaining And Operating A Network Within The Public Rights-Of-
Way Within The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2772 was made by Mr. Weaver and second 

was by Mr. Pierce.  
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this request involves some existing fiber located in Cahaba 
Heights owned by Access Fiber Group.  He showed a map of the location and explained that this 
fiber has been acquired by Crown Castle and, as the new owner of the existing fiber also wishes 
to extend it, they are requesting a franchise agreement with the standard 5% fee along with 2 
strands of dark fiber to be accessed by the City. 
 
 Mr. Downes introduced Amanda Brown, Crown Castle, who was present in regard to this 
request.  He stated that this agreement is similar to the Southern Light approved recently. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked Mr. Boone for his opinion. 
 
 Mr. Boone explained that he reviewed the document and compared them against existing 
agreements and recommended two revisions which were done by the Company. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about the projected market. 
 
 Ms. Brown explained that this is the backbone for communications in this area and would 
basically be used by small businesses and individuals.   
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about expected revenues. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated they do not know that presently but would report it later. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 25, 2018 

Page 6 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion for unanimous consent of the consideration and 
action on Ordinance Number 2773. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for immediate consideration and action Ordinance 

Number 2773 was made by Mrs. Cook and second was by Mr. Weaver.  
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2773 
 
Ordinance Number 2773 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Expend An 

Amount Not To Exceed $4,835,548 For Professional Services Of The Community 
Spaces Plan, TCU Managed Projects   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2773 was made by Mr. Weaver and second 

was by Mr. Pierce  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this request would help to expedite the design consultants to 
work on TCU-managed projects within the scope of the Community Spaces plan.  He stated some 
of the deadline for designs will be coming along and should not be held up for consideration for 
each and every project.  He added approval of this resolution will not approve the construction 
projects, only the design and engineering professional services costs of the TCU projects that 
have already been outlined in the Plan. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked if this would include professional services related to re-development of 
the City-owned public works facility near Wald. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that it would. 
 
 Mr. Pierce stated that these services do not have to be bid and are already in process and 
this will help to continue the process.  Mr. Downes explained they will lean on TCU’s advice in 
the selection of professionals. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that she missed the work session but did view the video and understands 
there will be no penalties for late delivery of design and engineering deliverables built into the 
professional services contracts, but that TCU will be responsible for making sure professional 
services are delivered on time and that they do not impact the construction schedule. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 25, 2018 

Page 7 
 

 Mr. Downes said that was correct and Ken Upchurch nodded his assent. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, asked if this was part of the debt that is part of the Plan.  
Mr. Downes stated this was part of the projected budget in the bond issue. 
 
 Mr. Harwell stated that this will go overall of $90 million over the next 30 years.  Mr. 
Downes explained the terms of the debt burden over the years. 
 
 Mayor Curry likened the loan to a house payment and the length of time it takes to pay 
off the mortgage. 
 
 Mr. Harwell expressed his feelings concerning the repayment of debt of the City and 
wanted the residents of the City to realize how much debt that the City will be carrying with no 
plan to reduce or pay off debt. 
 
 Discussion ensued into the previously discussed deliberations of this and the previous 
Council and the reasoning for the financing and the timing of the Community Spaces Plan. 
 
 Mr. Harwell emphasized that the City should concentrate on paying it off sooner and to 
develop a debt reduction plan. 
 
 Mr. Pierce explained the tax increases and the other methods of funding this plan and 
indicated that the Council did not make this decision lightly.   
 
 There being no one else to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes  
   Mr. Weaver – yes  Mayor Curry – yes    
        Motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on July 9, 2018, at 6:00 PM. 

 None 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, expressed appreciation for the Council’s re-
appointment to the BJCTA.  He stated he appreciates the ability to serve. 
 



City Council Minutes 
June 25, 2018 

Page 8 
 

 David Harwell, 1803 Catala Road, stated that he was a member of Gold’s Gym since it 
opened and stated that it was a very nice gym and a good piece of property.  He stated that the 
indoor track is one of the nicest indoor tracks and asked that it be preserved in the renovations so 
that citizens can utilize it. 
 
 At 6:59 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 7:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5068 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR A AND A DISCOUNT LIQUORS, LLC D/B/A 
VESTAVIA PACKAGE STORE; NARESH NATH 
BANALA AND SRIANIL KUMAR PEDDI, 
EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for A and A Discount Liquors, LLC d/b/a Vestavia Package Store, located 

at 2970 Columbiana Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the off-premise sale of 011 - 

Lounge Retail Liquor - Class II (Package); Naresh Nath Banala and Srianil Kumar Peddi, 

executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of July, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 





Exhibit - Resolution No. 5068



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5068



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5068



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5068



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5071 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR EL ZUNZUN RESTAURANT LLC D/B/A EL 
ZUNZUN; REBECCA SATTERFIELD, EXECUTIVE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for El Zunzun Restaurant LLC d/b/a El Zunzun, located at 4105 Crosshaven 

Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise sale of 020 - Restaurant Retail Liquor; 

Rebecca Satterfield, executive. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 9th day of July, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 





Exhibit - Resolution No. 5071



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5071



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5071



Resolution Number 5072 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5072 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal property 

detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell or dispose of said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 5072 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 9th day of July, 

2018. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                                                                6/28/18 

 

 

To: Rebecca Leavings 

From: Sgt. Gaston, Officer Wilson 

Re: Surplus City Property 

 

 

      Please request that the City Council deem the following property surplus at the next meeting: 

 

 2005 Dodge Dakota Vin# 1D7HW28K06S560042 

 

Please contact me with any questions or concerns. 

 

 

                                                                 Thanks,   Sgt. Gaston       ext.#1137 

                   Officer Wilson   ext.#1110 

 

                            

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5072



                                                                                                                                                6/22/18 

 

 

To: Rebecca Leavings 

From: Sgt. Gaston, Officer Wilson 

Re: Surplus City Property 

 

 

      Please request that the City Council deem the following property surplus at the next meeting: 

 

 2004 Nissan Maxima VIN# 1N4BA41E54C847341 

 

Please contact me with any questions or concerns. 

 

 

                                                                 Thanks,   Sgt. Gaston       ext.#1137 

                   Officer Wilson   ext.#1110 

 

                            

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5072



Ordinance Number 2774 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2774 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-4 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium 

density single-family district) to Vestavia Hills R-4 (medium density single-family 

district):  

1557 Holly Road 
Lot 6, Younes Addition to Shades Cliff 

Chris Salter, Owner(s) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that said rezoning shall be conditioned upon the 

final plat being approved and recorded with a maximum of 2 lots as presented. 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23rd day of July, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2774 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2774 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 23rd day of July, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2018. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2774 
Page 3 

 
 



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     JUNE 14, 2018

CASE: P-0618-20

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-4

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1557 Holly Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Chris Salter

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 1557 Holly Rd. from R-
2 to R-4 so that he may subdivide the lot into two. While there is enough land to meet
the minimum square footage, the lot is not wide enough to support two lots in an R-2
zone. The two lots proposed exceed the minimum requirements for the R-4 zoning. 
All current easements will remain.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The request is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan for low/medium density residential. 

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Rezoning conditioned on final plat being 
approved and recorded.

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems notes.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Romeo made a motion to recommend rezoning approval 1557 Holly Rd. from 
Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-4 conditioned on the two lot site plan presented. Second 
was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Sykes – yes Mr. Romeo – yes



2

Mr. Weaver – yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mrs. Barnes – yes Mr. Gilchrist – abstained
Mr. Larson – yes 
Motion carried.









Ordinance Number 2776 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2776 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2476 TO 
AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND 
DELIVER AN ADDENDUM TO VIDEO SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS, LLC D/B/A AT&T ALABAMA 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) dated ______________, 2018, (“Effective Date”) 
is made by and between BellSouth Telecommunications, LLC d/b/a AT&T Alabama (“AT&T 
Alabama”) (formerly a corporation but now a limited liability company), and the City of Vestavia 
Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation (“City of Vestavia Hills”).  AT&T Alabama and the City 
of Vestavia Hills shall sometimes be referred to separately as a “Party,” and collectively as the 
“Parties.” 
 
RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, City of Vestavia Hills and BellSouth Telecommunications, LLC d/b/a AT&T 
Alabama (“AT&T Alabama”) entered into an agreement styled Agreement (“Agreement”) on 
December 23, 2013 regarding the provision by AT&T Alabama of its integrated Internet Protocol 
(“IP”) enabled broadband platform of voice, data and video services (“IP Network”), the video 
component of which is a switched, two-way, point-to-point and interactive service (“IP Video 
Service”);  
 
 WHEREAS, paragraph 1 set forth the term of the Agreement to expire effective December 
31, 2018, but allows for extending the Agreement upon written mutual agreement of the parties;  
 
 WHEREAS, City of Vestavia Hills and AT&T Alabama desire to extend the terms of the 
Agreement for an additional five (5) years and agree that there is sufficient mutual consideration 
for renewing and extending the term of the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Vestavia Hills and AT&T Alabama desire to make one other 
modification to the terms of the Agreement, in addition to the five (5) year extension, which is to 
update the “Notices” provision as set forth herein below and agree that there is sufficient mutual 
consideration for updating the terms of the Agreement. 
 
 
AGREEMENTS 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and in 
the original “Agreement,” and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the City of Vestavia Hills and AT&T Alabama 
agree as follows: 
 
 1. Paragraph 1 of the “Agreement” is to be amended by changing the date of 
termination from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2023.  Paragraph 1 is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 



Ordinance Number 2776 
Page 2 

 

“Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date of this 
Agreement through December 31, 2023.  The term may be extended upon mutual 
agreement of the parties in writing.” 
 

 2. Paragraph 12, the “Notices” paragraph of the “Agreement”, is amended by 
changing the address for AT&T Alabama to the following:  
 
   AT&T Alabama 
   Assistant Vice President - Senior Legal Counsel 
   675 West Peachtree Street, N.W., Suite 4326 
   Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
 
  And the address for the City of Vestavia Hills to the following: 
 
   Mayor’s Office 
   City of Vestavia Hills 
   1032 Montgomery Highway 
   Vestavia Hills, Alabama  35216 
 
 

3. Unless amended by the terms of this Addendum, all other terms and conditions of 
the “Agreement,” shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect throughout the extended 
term.  In the event the terms and conditions of the “Agreement” conflict with the terms of this 
Addendum, this Addendum shall be deemed to supersede and override the terms of the 
“Agreement.” 

 
 4. This Addendum incorporates and includes all prior and contemporaneous 
negotiations, correspondence, conversations, agreements and understandings between the parties 
concerning the subject matter hereof.  No deviation from the terms hereof shall be predicated upon 
any prior or contemporaneous representations, agreements or understandings, whether oral or 
written. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, 
have executed this Agreement and made the same effective as of this 23rd day of July, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signature Pages Follow) 
  



Ordinance Number 2776 
Page 3 

 

 

AT&T Alabama 

 
By:       
Name: C. Wayne Hutchens 
Title:  President – AT&T Alabama 
 
State of Alabama  ) 
County of ____________ ) 
 
 Sworn to and subscribed before me this ________ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
        NOTARY PUBLIC    SEAL 
 
       My Commission Expires: _____________ 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 
 
By:       
Name: Ashley Curry 
Title:  Mayor 
 
State of Alabama  ) 
County of Jefferson  ) 
 
 Sworn to and subscribed before me this ________ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
 
        ___________________________ 
         NOTARY PUBLIC   SEAL  
 
        My Commission Expires: ___________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2776 
Page 4 

 

 
 
By:____________________________ 
Name: Jeffrey Downes 
Title:  City Manager 
 
State of Alabama  ) 
County of Jefferson  ) 
 
 Sworn to and subscribed before me this ________ day of _____________, 2018. 
 
 
        ___________________________ 
         NOTARY PUBLIC   SEAL  
 
        My Commission Expires: ___________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2776



Ordinance Number 2777 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2777 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH 
GRESHAM SMITH & PARTNERS AS ARCHITECT AND ENGINEER 

 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to construct a pedestrian bridge (hereinafter referred to as 

“Bridge”) over U.S. Highway 31 South of Round Hill Road as a connection between Wald Park 

and the new Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest; and 

 WHEREAS, the Bridge will be constructed in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on, in 

and above the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 31 South (the “construction site”), which is not owned 

by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City and Gresham Smith & Partners (hereinafter 

referred to as “GSP”) entered into a Contract wherein GSP agreed to perform architectural and 

engineering services for the design of the Bridge for an in consideration of the payment of Two 

Hundred Eight Thousand Three hundred forty-one Dollars ($208,341.00); and  

 WHEREAS, GSP performed design services and has been paid the sum of $187,177.10 to 

date; and 

 WHEREAS, GSP and the City agree that additional design services are needed prior to 

the construction of the Bridge as mandated by the Alabama Department of Transportation; and 

 WHEREAS, the City and GSP have agreed for GSP to perform the “additional design 

services” for and in consideration of the payment of Two Hundred Eighty-Seven Thousand Three 

Hundred Fifteen Dollars ($287,315.00) to be partially funded by grants administered through the 

MPO; and 

 WHEREAS, the City and GSP have negotiated this Supplemental Agreement to the 

Contract between the City and GSP, dated September 23, 2011; and 

 WHEREAS, The City and GSP have agreed to the terms, provisions and conditions of this 

supplemental agreement and have further agreed that it is in the best parties interest that this 

agreement be reduced to writing; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said Supplemental Agreement is marked as Exhibit A, attached to 

and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2777 as if written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept said 

agreement. 



Ordinance Number 2777 
Page 2 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said agreement 

marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2777 as if 

written fully therein; and 

2. Said agreement shall be attested by the City Clerk with the City Seal; and 

3. If any portion of this agreement shall be held unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, 

such holding shall not affect the remaining portions of this agreement nor render the 

remaining portions of this agreement invalid, and to that end the provisions hereof are 

declared to be severable. 

4. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon publication/posting pursuant to 

Alabama law. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of July, 2018. 

 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2777 is a true and correct copy of such 
Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day 
of July, 2018 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia Hills New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2018. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND ARCHITECT/ENGINEER 

 
WITNESSETH THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT, made and entered into on 

this the _______ day of ___________________, 2018, by and between the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, a municipal corporation, as "Owner," hereinafter referred to as "City," and Gresham 
Smith & Partners, as "Architect and Engineer," hereinafter referred to as GSP. 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to construct a pedestrian bridge (hereinafter referred to as 

""Bridge") over U.S. Highway 31 South of Round Hill Road as a connection between Wald Park 
and the new Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest; and 

 
WHEREAS, three separate grant applications submitted by the City of Vestavia Hills 

("City") requesting partial federal funding for the pedestrian crosswalk ("'Bridge") over U.S. 
Highway 31 at Round Hill Road have been approved. The three grants are between the State of 
Alabama ("State") acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation ("ALDOT") 
and the City in cooperation with the United States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway 
Administration ("'FHWA") and are as follows: 

 
APPROVED GRANTS FOR HIGHWAY 31 PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALK 

 
Funding  Funded  Funding  City's    For 
Source  Amount    Responsibility 
 
HPP-Al24  $ 700,000  $560,000  $140,000     Design, construction and inspection 
 
DE-AL104     200,000    200,000     -0-      Design and construction 
 
IBRD/IBRC     200,000     200,000     -0-      Innovative design by UAB 
 

$1, 100,000  $960,000  $140,000;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the Bridge will be constructed in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on, in 
and above the right-of-way of U.S. Highway 31 South (the "construction site"), which is not owned 
by the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the construction of the bridge is a public works project within the meaning 

of Alabama law set forth at Title 39-2-1 (6), Code ofAlabama, 1975, as follows: 
 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



"(6) PUBLIC WORKS.--The construction, installation, repair, 
renovation, or maintenance of public buildings, structures, sewers, 
waterworks, roads, curbs, gutters, side walls, bridges, docks, 
underpasses, and viaducts as well as any other improvement to be 
constructed, installed, repaired, renovated, or maintained on public 
property and to be paid, in whole or in part, with public funds or with 
financing to be retired with public funds in the form of lease payments 
or otherwise."; and 

 
WHEREAS, by virtue of Title 34-2-32(c), Code of Alabama, 1975, the City must require 

that the services of a registered architect shall be required for the preparation of the plans and 
specifications for the Bridge; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City must require that the engineering drawings, plans, specifications and 

estimates for the Bridge be prepared by and the construction thereof executed under the direct 
supervision of a professional engineer as mandated by Title 34-11-10, Code of Alabama, 1975; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 27, 2011, the City and GSP entered into a Contract wherein 

GSP agreed to perform architectural and engineering services for the design of the Bridge for and 
in consideration of the payment of Two Hundred Eight Thousand Three Hundred Forty-one 
Dollars ($208,34 I .00); and 

 
WHEREAS, GSP performed design services and was paid the sum of $187,177.10; and 
 
WHEREAS, GSP and City agree that additional design services are needed prior to the 

construction of the Bridge; and WHEREAS, the City and GSP have agreed for GSP to perform 
the "additional design services" for and in consideration of the payment of Two Hundred Eighty-
seven Thousand Three Hundred Fifteen Dollars ($287,315.00); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and GSP have negotiated this Supplemental Agreement to the 
Contract between the City and GSP, dated September 27, 2011; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City and GSP have agreed to the terms, provisions and conditions of this 
Supplemental Agreement and have further agreed that it is in the best of the parties that this 
agreement be reduced to writing. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That in 
consideration of the mutual covenants, premises and promises contained herein and other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by each of the parties 
hereto, the City and GSP mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER: Gresham Smith & Partners represent, covenant 
and warrant that it is a licensed professional engineer within the meaning of Title 34-11-1 (3), 
Code of Alabama, 1975, in good standing with the State of Alabama Board of Licensure for 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors. GSP agrees to serve as Professional Engineer for the 
Project and the Work hereinafter described in sections 4 and 5. 

 
2. REGISTERED ARCHITECT: Gresham Smith & Partners represent, covenant 

and warrant that it is a licensed registered architect within the meaning of Title 34-2-30, Code of 
Alabama, 1975, in good standing with the State of Alabama Board for Registration of Architects.  
GSP agrees to serve as Registered Architect for the Project and the Work hereinafter described in 
sections 4 and 5. 

 
3.  PARTIES TO THIS CONTRACT: This Supplemental Agreement is made and 

entered into by and between the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation, as 
"Owner," (hereinafter referred to as "City") and Gresham Smith & Partners, as "Architect and 
Engineer," (hereinafter referred to as "GSP). 

 
4.  THE PROJECT: The project is the design of a pedestrian bridge (hereinafter 

referred to as "Bridge") over U.S. Highway 31 South of Round Hill Road as a connection between 
Wald Park and the Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest. 

 
5.  THE WORK: The work is the design of the Bridge and the preparation of the 

drawings, plans, specifications, budgeted cost of the work, surveys, tests and consultants' reports 
for the Bridge to the extent necessary to invite competitive bids for the construction of the Bridge 
pursuant to the Public Works Law of Alabama set forth in Title 39-2-1, et seq., Code of Alabama, 
1975 (hereinafter referred to as "the Work"). GSP shall coordinate and collaborate with the 
University of Alabama at Birmingham ("UAB") to develop a design for the Bridge, which is in 
accordance with the Innovative Bridge Research and Construction ("IBRC") Program of the FHW 
A and does agree to prepare contract plans for said Bridge upon approval of the innovative design. 
Detailed descriptions of the process and tasks included in the scope of the Work are included in 
Exhibit A "Scope of Services", attached and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
6.  PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK: GSP agrees to perform the Work described 

in Exhibit A. Any additional tasks requested by the City, including any construction phase services, 
shall be additional services; the scope descriptions and schedule/fee adjustments for which shall 
be added to this Agreement by mutually agreed amendment prior to GSP commencing 
performance of such additional services. 

 
7.   CONTRACT PRICE: As consideration for this agreement, the City agrees to pay 

to GSP for the faithful performance of the Work the sum of Two Hundred Eighty-seven Thousand 
Three Hundred Fifteen Dollars ($287,315.00) (hereinafter referred to as the "Contract Price"), 
which is the Contract Price approved by ALDOT (it being agreed that the sum of $187,177.10 has 
heretofore been paid). The breakdown of the Contract Price by task and process within the Work 
is further identified in Attachment B. 
 

8.  PAYMENT OF CONTRACT PRICE: The City shall pay the Contract Price to 
GSP in full upon completion of the Work described in paragraph 5 above and subject to the 
approval of ALDOT, the State, FHWA and the City. Payment will be in response to submission 
by GSP and approval by the City of monthly invoices including progress reports and such evidence 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



of performance that the City may deem necessary. Should the City disapprove of a part of any 
invoice, the part that is not in dispute shall be paid without undue delay. 

 
9.   TERM OF THE CONTRACT: The term of this Supplemental Agreement shall 

be for a period of eighteen (18) months beginning on the date of the execution and delivery of this 
contract.  GSP shall complete the Work to be performed under this contract no later than the 
mutually agreed project schedule included in Exhibit A.  GSP endeavor to complete design work 
in no later than eighteen (18) months following the date of the signing of the Supplemental 
Agreement by both City and GSP. 

 
10.  CONSTRUCTION SITE: The City and GSP acknowledge and agree that the 

Bridge will ultimately be constructed on, in and above the right-of-way of Highway U.S. 3 I South 
(the "Construction Site"), which is not owned by the City. ALDOT will determine the exact 
location for the Construction Site. GSP, therefore, shall perform the design Work for the Project 
for the Construction Site selected by ALDOT. Determination of the exact location of the 
Construction Site shall be a condition precedent to the commencement of the Work by GSP. 
Should the location of the Construction Site be changed once GSP has commenced performance 
of the Work, GSP shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to the project schedule and the 
Contract Price. Such mutually agreed adjustments to the project schedule and Contract Price shall 
be added to this Agreement by written amendment. 

 
11.  STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE: GSP shall perform the Work with the 

reasonable care and competence, applying the technical knowledge and skill which is applied by 
architects of good standing with the Alabama Board of Registration of Architects and by 
professional engineers in good standing with the State Board of Licensure for Professional 
Engineers and Land Surveyors.  

 
12.  GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS: GSP shall comply with the 

provisions of the labor law and all state, federal and local laws, statutes, codes, rules, regulations 
and ordinances that are applicable to the performance of this Contract Between City and GSP. 

 
13.  COMPLIANCE WITH AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990: 

GSP represents, covenants and warrants that the design for the Bridge and all work performed by 
GSP will comply with the terms, conditions and provisions of Public Law 101-336 being the 
Americans With Disabilities Act of I 990 at 42 U .S.C. 1210, et seq. ("ADA"). 

 
14.  APPROVAL OF WORK: The Work shall be approved by ALDOT, the State, 

FHWA and the City. GSP acknowledges and agrees as follows: 
 

(a)  Title 34-2-32(c), Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that: 
 

"(c) The services of a registered architect shall be required on all 
buildings except those hereinabove exempted and no official of this state or 
of any city, town or county herein charged with the enforcement of laws, 
ordinances or regulations relating to the construction or alteration of 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



buildings, shall accept or approve any plans or specifications that are not so 
prepared." 

 
(b) Title 34-11-10, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that: 
 

"§34-11-10. Public Works. It shall be unlawful for the state or any 
of its departments, boards or agencies or any county, municipality or 
political subdivision or any department, board or agency of any county, 
municipality or political subdivision to engage in the construction of any 
public work involving the practice of engineering unless the engineering 
drawings, plans, specifications and estimates have been prepared by and the 
construction executed under the direct supervision of a professional 
engineer; provided, that nothing in this chapter shall be held to apply to any 
public work wherein the expenditure for the complete project of which the 
work is a part does not exceed $20,000.00." 

 
15.  ENGINEERING SERVICES AND CONSULTANTS: For the performance of 

the services by the Agreement, GSP will employ the services of consulting engineers so as to 
provide a full professional team as dictated by the disciplines of architectural and engineering 
design involved in the Work, specifically including but not limited to, civil engineer, structural 
engineer, electrical engineer, mechanical engineer, geotechnical engineer, land surveyor and other 
engineering consultants as required for the Project and shall pay for any and all said engineering 
expenses necessarily incurred for the Project. In other words, the costs for said consultants is 
included in the Contract Price.   

 
All architectural and engineering work shall be performed under the direct supervision of 

professional architects and engineers registered in the State of Alabama and employed either by 
GSP or its consultants. 
 

All plans prepared by engineering consultants shall be separately identified by title, sheet 
number and official registration seal or signature and registration number. Engineering drawings 
shall not be combined with other drawings unless deemed to be in the "incidental" category. 

 
(a) ALDOT Survey Requirements are set forth in Attachment D, a copy of which 

is attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement by reference as though set out fully 
herein. 

 
16.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: GSP is an independent contractor for 

purposes of this contract. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to mean that said GSP is the 
servant, agent or employee of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 
17.  ARCHITECT'S/ENGINEER'S INSURANCE: Within ten (I 0) days after 

receiving the fully executed Agreement and prior to performing any services under this 
Agreement, GSP shall procure the insurance coverages identified below at its own expense, and 
to evidence that such insurance coverages are in effect GSP shall furnish the City an insurance 
certificate(s) acceptable to the City and listing the City as the certificate holder or provide a copy 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



of the insurance policy that documents said coverage to the satisfaction of the City prior to the 
commencement of work. 

 
(a)  Policy Providers: Each of the insurance coverages required below shall be 

issued by an insurer licensed by the Insurance Commissioner to transact the business of 
insurance in the State of Alabama for the applicable line of insurance, and such insurer (or, 
for qualified self-insureds or group self-insureds, a specific excess insurer providing 
statutory limits) must have a Best Policyholders Rating of "A-" or better and a financial 
size rating of Class V or larger. 

 
(b)  Notification Endorsement: Each policy shall be endorsed to provide that 

the insurance company agrees that the policy shall not be cancelled, changed, allowed to 
lapse or allowed to expire for any reason until thirty (30) days after the City has received 
written notice by certified mail as evidenced by return receipt or until such time as other 
insurance coverage providing protection equal to protection called for herein shall have 
been received, accepted and acknowledged by the City. Such notice shall be valid only as 
to the Project as shall have been designed by Project Name and Number in said notice. 

 
(c)  Insurance Certificates: Insurance certificate must provide the following 

information: 
1) Name and address of authorized agent of the insurance company; 
2) Name and address of insured; 
3) Name of insurance company or companies; 
4) Description of policies; 
5) Policy number(s); 
6) Policy period(s); 
7) Limits of liability; 
8) Name and address of City as certificate holder; 
9) Project name and number, if any; 
10) Signature of authorized agent of the insurance company; 
11) Telephone number of authorized agent of the insurance company; 
12) Mandatory thirty (30) day notice of cancellation/nonrenewal/change. 

 
(d)  GSP's Insurance Coverages: Unless otherwise provided in the Special 

Provisions of the Agreement, GSP shall purchase the types of insurance coverages with 
liability limits not less than as follows: 

 
(1)  Workers' Compensation coverage shall be provided in accordance with 

the statutory coverage required in Alabama. A group insurer must submit a certificate of 
authority from the Alabama Department of Industrial Relations approving the group 
insurance plan. A self-insurer must submit a certificate from the Alabama Department of 
Industrial Relations stating that GSP qualifies to pay its own workers compensation claims. 

 
(2)  Employer's Liability Insurance limits shall be at least: 

 
(a)  Bodily Injury by Accident--$1,000,000 each accident; 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



(b)  Bodily Injury by Disease--$1,000,000 each employee. 
 

(3)  Commercial General Liability Insurance written on an ISO Occurrence 
Form (current edition as of the date of this Agreement) or equivalent, which shall include, 
but need not be limited to, coverage for bodily injury and property damage arising from 
premises and operations liability, products and completed operations liability, personal 
injury liability and contractual liability. 

 
(a)  The Commercial General Liability Insurance shall provide, at 

minimum, the following limits: 
 

Coverage     Limit 
(i) General Aggregate   $2,000,000 
(ii) Products, Completed 

Operations Aggregate   $2,000,000 
(iii) Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 per occurrence 
(iv) Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 

 
(b) The Commercial General Liability Insurance policy shall name the City 

and its agents and employees as additional insureds and shall state that this coverage 
shall be primary insurance for the additional insureds. 

 
(4)  Commercial Business Automobile Liability Insurance, which shall 

include coverage for bodily injury and property damage arising from the operation of any 
owned, non-owned or hired automobile. The Commercial Business Automobile Liability 
Insurance Policy shall provide not less than $1,000,000.00 Combined Single Limits for 
each occurrence and shall name the City and its agents, consultants and employees as 
additional insureds. 

 
(5)  Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions) Insurance shall be carried 

in an amount not less than $1 ,000,000.00. The policy deductible shall not exceed 
$25,000.00. 
 

(6)  Excess/Umbrella Insurance: At GSP's option, the foregoing insurance 
coverage described in (2), (3) and (4) above may be satisfied with a combination of primary 
insurance and excess/umbrella insurance coverage. 

 
 

(e)  GSP's Consultants' Insurance Coverages: 
 
(1) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance:  GSP shall require 

each of its consultants who will perform services at the Project Site to obtain and maintain 
Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance coverages as described in 
preceding paragraph (d). 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



(2)  Automobile and General Liability Insurance: GSP shall require each of its 
consultants who will perform services at the Project Site to obtain and maintain Automobile 
and General Liability Insurance Coverages with the limits described in preceding 
paragraph (d). 

 
(3)  Professional Liability Insurance: GSP shall require each of its consultants 

to obtain and maintain Professional Liability Insurance with coverage as described in 
preceding paragraph (d). 

 
(4)  Enforcement Responsibility: GSP shall have responsibility to enforce its 

consultants' compliance with these insurance requirements; however, GSP shall, upon 
request, provide the City acceptable evidence of insurance for any consultant. 

 
(f)  Termination of Obligation to Insure:  Unless otherwise expressly 

provided in the Special Provisions of the Agreement, the obligation of GSP and its 
consultants to insure as provided herein shall continue as follows: 

(1)  Professional Liability (Errors & Omissions) Insurance shall be 
carried for two (2) years after completion of the Work. Other than shop drawing 
review, GSP does not have scope of work during construction, and the project might 
be suspended after design is complete. Should Construction Engineering and 
Inspection (CEI) get added by amendment, then completion of the Work will be 
completion of construction. 

(2)  Other Insurance. The obligation to carry the other insurance 
coverages of preceding paragraph (d) or coverages equal to them, shall remain in 
effect at any time GSP, its consultants, anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, returns to the Project to perform 
services required of this Agreement. 

 
18. INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, GSP shall indemnify 

and hold harmless the City, State and A LOOT and their agents, employees, officials and officers, 
in their official and individual capacities (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Indemnitees") 
from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' 
fees, arising out of, related to or resulting from but only to the extent caused by performance of 
the Work by GSP; provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily 
injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, including loss 
of use resulting therefrom, and is caused in whole or in part by negligent acts or omissions of GSP 
and anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable. 
 

(a)  This indemnification shall extend to all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses for injury or damage to adjacent or neighboring property, or persons injured 
thereon, that arise out of, relate to or result from but only to the extent caused by the 
negligent performance of the Work. 

 
(b) This indemnification does not apply to the extent of the sole negligence of 

the Indemnitees. 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



19.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION: The City and GSP agree to endeavor to resolve all 
conflicts or disputes between the arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the project through 
good-faith, face-to-face discussions between duly authorized representatives of both parties. 
Should such face-to-face discussions fail to resolve the issue, both parties agree to submit the 
dispute to nonbinding Mediation. Should Mediation also fail to resolve the dispute, then either 
party may pursue resolution through litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
20.  CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES: The City and GSP waive indirect, incidental 

or consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement. 
 

21.  IMMIGRATION: By signing this Contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the 
duration of the Contract, that they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, 
hire for employment or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 
Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in 
breach of the Contract and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 

 
22.  COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE 41-16-5, CODE OF ALABAMA, 1975, 

BOYCOTT LIMITATIONS: Act 2016-312 of the Alabama Legislature prohibits a 
governmental entity from entering into certain public contracts with a business entity unless the 
contract includes a representation that the business is not currently engaged in, and an agreement 
that the business will not engage in, the boycott of a person or an entity based upon the person or 
business doing business with a jurisdiction with which the state can enjoy open trade. The 
prohibition does not apply if a business offers to provide goods or services for at least 20 percent 
less than the lowest certifying business entity or to a contract with a value less than $15,000.00. 
The Contractor represents and warrants that it is not currently engaged in, and will not engage in, 
the boycott of a person or an entity based in or doing business with a jurisdiction with which this 
state can enjoy open trade. 

 
23.  RATIFICATION AND CONFIRMATION: The City and GSP hereby ratify, 

approve and confirm all of the terms, provisions and conditions of the Contract, dated September 
23, 2011, by and between the City and GSP that are not amended or modified by this Supplemental 
Agreement. 
 

24.  MISCELLANEOUS: 
 
(a)  Non Waiver: The failure of the City to insist, in any one or more instances, 

upon a strict performance of any of the covenants of this contract, or to exercise any option 
herein contained, shall not be construed as a waiver, or a relinquishment for the future of 
such covenant or option, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect. 

 
(b)  Waiver of Modification: Any waiver, alteration or modification of any of 

the provisions of this agreement or cancellation or replacement of this agreement shall not 
be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto. This agreement may be amended 
at any time by written agreement of the parties signatory hereto. 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



(c)  Notices: Any and all notices required or permitted to be given under this 
agreement will be sufficient if furnished in writing and sent by Registered Mail to the 
parties' last known address. 

 
(d)  Governing Law: This Supplemental Agreement shall be interpreted, 

construed and governed to the laws of the State of Alabama. The jurisdiction and venue for 
the resolution of any dispute shall be in Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 
(e)   Article and Section Headings: The article and section headings and 

captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not be considered a 
part hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

 
(f)  Construction of Terms: The City and GSP negotiated the terms, provisions 

and conditions of this contract over a period of many months and both parties had the equal 
opportunity for input for the drafting of this contract. Therefore, any ambiguities of this 
contract shall be construed fairly and equitably regardless of the participation of either 
party in drafting this contract. The reference in terms to gender and number shall be 
modified as may be appropriate. 

 
(g)  Execution in Counterparts: The Supplemental Agreement may be 

executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall 
constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 
(h)  Binding Effect: The Supplemental Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, 

and shall be binding upon City and GSP and their heirs, successors and assigns. 
 
(i)  Severability: In the event any provision of this Supplemental Agreement 

shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding 
shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

 
(j)  Entire Agreement: This written contract contains the entire agreement 

between the City and the GSP. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation, 
and Gresham Smith & Partners have caused this Supplemental Agreement to be executed by their 
duly authorized officers and their respective seals to be affixed hereto on this the _____ day of 
_______________ ,2018. 
 

OWNER: 
      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

A Municipal Corporation 
 
 

By___________________________________ 
 Ashley C. Curry 
 Its Mayor 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



 
 
By____________________________________ 
 Jeffrey D. Downes 
 Its City Manager 

ATTESTED: 
 
By__________________________________________ 
 Rebecca Leavings 
 City Clerk 
 
 
 

ARCHITECT AND ENGINEER: 
GRESHAM SMITH & PARTNERS 

 
 
 

By ____________________________________ 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
By __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Ashley C. Curry, whose name as Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a 
municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Supplemental Agreement Between Owner and 
Architect/Engineer, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being 
informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the 
same voluntarily for and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 
Given under my hand and official seal, this the ____ day of ________________ , 2018. 

 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_____________________   ________________________________________ 
SEAL        Notary Public 
 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Jeffrey D. Downes, whose name as City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Supplemental Agreement Between 
Owner and Architect/Engineer, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day 
that, being informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such officer and with full authority, 
executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 
Given under my hand and official seal, this the ____ day of ________________ , 2018. 

 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_____________________   ________________________________________ 
SEAL        Notary Public 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that _____________________________ whose name as _________________________, 
of Gresham Smith & Partners is signed to the foregoing Supplemental Agreement Between Owner 
and Architect/Engineer, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being 
informed of the contents of the instrument, he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the 
same voluntarily for and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 
Given under my hand and official seal, this the ____ day of ________________ , 2018. 

 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_____________________   ________________________________________ 
SEAL        Notary Public 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



PEDESTRIAN WALKWAY OVER US-31 IN VESTAVIA HILLS NEAR WALD PARK 
ALDOT PROJECT NO. DE-IBRD-A014(916) 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT #1 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Since the preliminary bridge plans were originally approved by ALDOT in July 2014, this proposed 
pedestrian bridge has undergone many changes.  After developing a number of additional 
preliminary bridge layouts, preliminary cost estimates, and developing the preliminary 
architectural concepts of the bridge, the City and ALDOT have agreed on a pedestrian bridge with 
an elevator and stairs on the east side of US Highway 31.  The bridge will also be shifted about 
45’ to the south of its originally designed location, and the elevator/stair tower will be moved to 
the south side of the bridge to avoid the steep, wooded slope on the east side of Highway 31, 
thus saving time and money in both design and construction. 
 
Since the design and plans for the originally approved bridge was approximately 60%-65% 
complete, the changes described above will unfortunately require a significant amount of re-
design work.  Additionally, the scope of the bridge has expanded to include a number of 
architectural elements to blend the bridge architecturally with the architecture of Vestavia Hills’ 
City Hall and the City’s Library in the Forest.  The design of these architectural treatments was 
not included in our original scope and fee for the bridge design. 
 
SCOPE OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
The scope of the additional services covered in this Supplemental Agreement is described below: 
 
Additional Preliminary Roadway, Bridge & Architectural Plans 
 
Task1 – Additional Preliminary Bridge & Architectural Alternatives 

 
1. GS&P’s architects and engineers developed a number of additional preliminary bridge 

layout alternatives in an effort to reduce the cost (initial construction and future 
maintenance) of the bridge and provide an aesthetically pleasing and functional layout.  
These additional layouts included: 

a. Re-visiting the north, ADA-compliant ramping concept (with and without elevator) 
b. Switchback ramp south of the bridge with stairs (with and without elevator) 
c. Double switchback ramp south of the bridge with no elevator or stairs 
d. Double switchback ramp south of the bridge with stairs (no elevator) 

2. Researched different elevator options and costs and coordinated with preliminary 
elevator/stair tower layout. 

3. Developed preliminary bridge, elevator & stair tower concept designs for preferred 
alternative. 

4. Developed preliminary bridge and stair railing designs/concepts. 
5. Researched and developed proposed bridge architecture & architectural materials 

proposed for elevator/stair tower veneer, stairs with bicycle channel, stairway and bridge 
walkway lighting, and railing/fencing design and materials.  This task included several 
meetings with City staff to review and receive input on bridge architecture and materials. 

6. Meetings with City & ALDOT to review additional preliminary bridge & architectural 
alternatives. 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



7. Developed three-dimensional model & color renderings of preliminary bridge and 
elevator/stair tower concepts for the City. 

 
Task 2 – Preliminary Construction Cost Estimates for Additional Alternatives & Project Funding 
Coordination 
 

1. Developed preliminary construction cost estimates for additional preliminary bridge layout 
alternatives described in Task 1.1.     

2. Coordinated preliminary construction costs for alternatives vs. ALDOT & City construction 
budget.    

3. Meetings with City & ALDOT to discuss preliminary cost estimates for alternatives 
4. Coordinated federal funding amounts with ALDOT & City. 

 
Task 3 – Revise Preliminary Roadway (Bridge Site) Plans 

 
1. Revise preliminary roadway (bridge site) plans to shift bridge crossing location 

approximately 45’ south and move elevator/stair tower to south side of bridge.  
2. Submit revised preliminary roadway & bridge (TS&L) plans to ALDOT for preliminary 

approval and coordinate with ALDOT as needed.  
 
Task 4 – Preliminary Bridge Plans 
 

1. Revise preliminary bridge layout (TS&L) plans to shift bridge crossing location 
approximately 45’ south and move elevator/stair tower to south side of bridge. 

2. Submit revised preliminary bridge (TS&L) plans to ALDOT for preliminary approval and 
coordination with ALDOT & City. 

3. Address ALDOT comments & resubmit TS&L plans   
 
Environmental Studies & Document (PCE-1) 
 
The regulatory agency concurrence letters obtained and the short checklist Categorical 
Exclusion that was originally prepared for this project was never approved by ALDOT & the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).  All of the various regulatory agency concurrence 
letters have now expired.  ALDOT has advised that a new Programmatic Categorical Exclusion 
1 (PCE-1) must be completed for this project.  The additional tasks below will be completed: 
 
Task A - Environmental Coordination & Concurrences 

 
1. Coordinate with ALDOT on status of prior environmental document and new 

environmental document requirements.    
2. Site visit to obtain updated photographs of project area.  Label project photos & prepare 

photo key.    
3. Update maps, exhibits & project description    
4. Prepare and submit updated project information to United States Corps of Engineers 

(USCOE) for concurrence    
5. Endangered Species - Review and confirm project complies with Alabama Endangered 

Species MOA    
6. Prepare and submit updated project information to United States Fish & Wildlife Service  

(USFWS) for concurrence    
7. Federally listed bats - research to determine if project occurs within White Nose 

Syndrome (WNS) Zone.    

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



8. Cultural Resources - review and confirm project complies with Alabama SHPO Section 
106 MOA.    

9. Cultural Resources Assessment - prepare and submit information for cultural resources 
assessment requested by Coushatta-Alabama tribe.  Coordinate with cultural resources 
subconsultant.  

a. University of Alabama – Office of Archaeological Research will complete the 
required cultural resources survey as a subconsultant to GS&P. 

10. Hazardous Materials - research records to confirm project does not involve hazardous 
materials site.    

11. Coordination with ALDOT & Various agencies 
 
Task B - Public Involvement Meeting 

 
1. Coordinate scheduling and advertisement of Public Involvement Meeting with ALDOT & 

City.  ALDOT has advised that the public involvement meeting can be held as part of a 
normal Vestavia Hills City Council meeting.  Provide ALDOT/City with information for 
Public Involvement meeting advertisement. 

2. Prepare Exhibits for Public Involvement Meeting.  Submit exhibits to ALDOT and City for 
review and approval.   

3. Attend Public Involvement Meeting and Analyze and Summarize Comments. 
 
Task C - Prepare PCE-1 

 
1. Prepare draft PCE-1 and submit to ALDOT for review.  
2. Coordinate with ALDOT on comments and revisions needed for PCE-1. 
3. Revise & resubmit PCE-1 to ALDOT. 

 
Since the project is being constructed within the existing right of way of US-31, no 
environmental issues or additional environmental studies are anticipated.  Since no additional 
roadway capacity is being added in this project, we understand that no noise or air studies are 
required.  Any additional environmental studies required such as stream/wetlands delineation, 
threatened and endangered species study, hazardous materials study, noise or air studies are 
not included in this scope of services. 
 
Additional Field Survey 
 
Additional topographic field survey information is needed at the location of the proposed stairs 
from the existing US-31 sidewalk down to the City’s Library in the Forest on the east side of US-
31.  These proposed stairs were not part of the original design scope of services, so the original 
topographic survey for this project is not sufficient to design and detail these proposed stairs to 
connect to the existing sidewalk at the Library.  Sain Associates will provide the additional field 
survey as a subconsultant to GS&P. 
 
Revisions to Roadway (Site) Plans 
 
The roadway (site) plans will be revised to move the location of the proposed pedestrian bridge 
crossing approximately 45’ south of the originally designed crossing location.  These revisions 
will include revisions to the relocation of the existing sidewalk on the east side of US-31 and 
revisions to the sidewalk/ramp tie-in to the existing sidewalk on the west side of US-31.  The 
plans will be resubmitted to ALDOT for a 30% review, and GS&P will address 30% review 
comments from ALDOT. 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



 
In the original agreement, the project was to be advertised and bid by the City of Vestavia Hills.  
Accordingly, the originally proposed plan assembly was not a full, ALDOT plan assembly and 
was not scheduled to go through all ALDOT plan reviews.  Now, ALDOT will advertise and bid 
the project.  Therefore, this Supplemental Agreement includes plan revisions and additional 
sheets required for a full, ALDOT-bid project.  This Supplemental Agreement also includes the 
effort to submit plans and address comments for ALDOT’s Final Back-Check review, 
Construction Bureau review, and Office Engineer submittals, which were not included in the 
scope of services for the original agreements.  
 
Other tasks included in this Supplemental Agreement include: 

1. The layout of the concrete sidewalk/landing/gathering area at the bottom level where the 
elevator and stairs land at ground-level will be designed and detailed. 

2. Since this project now has federal HPP and TAP funding as well as local funds, the pay 
items, quantities and cost estimates will have to be broken down into these various 
funding categories, based on funding eligibility of the proposed items of work and 
available federal HPP and TAP funding amounts. 

3. There is an existing street light on US-31 that will likely have to be relocated, as it 
conflicts with the proposed pedestrian bridge. GS&P will include the necessary plan 
sheets for the relocation of this street light and coordinate the street light relocation with 
ALDOT and the City.   

4. The proposed design may require some retaining walls.  Retaining wall layout sheets 
and summary of quantity box sheets have been added in this Supplemental Agreement. 

5. Additional utility coordination and determination of current utility company contacts. 
6. No cross sections were included in the scope and fee proposal for the original 

agreement.  ALDOT is now requiring cross sections for the relocation of the sidewalk on 
the east side of US-31. 

7. We anticipate that several Special Provisions will be required for items of work for which 
ALDOT does not have standard specifications.  GS&P will prepare Special Provision for 
any items of work for which ALDOT does not have standard specifications or current 
Special Provisions.  

 
Revised Bridge Plans 
 
The originally designed plans for the proposed pedestrian bridge will be revised to move the 
location of the proposed pedestrian bridge crossing approximately 45’ south of the originally 
designed crossing location.  This includes revising the design of the bridge superstructure (main 
span across US-31 and short spans on the east side of US-31) and Abutment 1, Bent 2 and 
Bent 3.  The bridge design will also include coordination with GS&P Architects and incorporation 
of various architectural elements (concrete finishes and colors, veneers, aesthetic lighting, etc.) 
into the bridge structure.   
 
GS&P bridge engineers will collaborate with GS&P architects on the design of the railing/fencing 
system for the bridge.  GS&P architects will design the general layout, appearance and 
materials to be used in the railing/fencing system.  GS&P bridge engineers will design the 
structural framework of the railing/fencing system as well as how it attaches to the pedestrian 
bridge. 
 
The structural design of the elevator/stair tower will be performed by a vertical building structural 
subconsultant, LBYD.  (see Structural Design of Elevator & Stair Tower section of scope below).  
GS&P bridge engineers will coordinate with the elevator/stair tower structural design 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



subconsultant on the integration and attachment details of the pedestrian bridge spans to the 
elevator/stair tower. 
 
Utility Relocation Plans 
 
GS&P will coordinate, design and prepare the necessary plan sheets for the relocation of a 12” 
diameter Birmingham Water Works Board (BWWB) water main that is in conflict with the 
proposed pedestrian bridge foundation.   
 
GS&P will also coordinate with ALDOT and design and prepare the necessary plan sheets for 
the relocation of an existing ALDOT buried fiber optic communication line that is in conflict with 
the proposed pedestrian bridge foundation.  This fiber optic line relocation will likely require a 
temporary relocation to allow construction of the pedestrian bridge and elevator/stair tower and 
then a permanent relocation after the pedestrian bridge and elevator/stair tower has been 
constructed. 
 
GS&P will coordinate with BWWB and ALDOT to determine the appropriate locations of the 
relocated 12” water main and buried fiber optic line. 
 
Architectural Design Services 
 
GS&P will provide architectural design services for the proposed pedestrian bridge.  These 
services will primarily relate to the design of the proposed elevator/stair tower.  The architectural 
design services will also include the design of the fencing/railing system for the bridge as well as 
the finishes, colors and other architectural features for the proposed pedestrian bridge. 
 
ALDOT will submit the plans for the architectural plans, elevator/stair tower plans, and HVAC, 
electrical and plumbing plans to the Alabama Building Commission (ABC) for their review.  The 
GS&P team will address any ABC comments. 
 
Structural Design of Elevator & Stair Tower 
 
LBYD, as a subconsultant to GS&P, will perform the structural design and prepare structural 
design plans for the elevator and stair tower. This will include the roof/covering over the upper 
level of the pedestrian bridge at the entrance to the elevator and the structural supports for the 
wind/rain screen and signage.  LBYD will coordinate with GS&P Architects on the architectural 
aspects of the elements outlined above.  LBYD will coordinate with GS&P Bridge Engineers on 
the structural attachments between the pedestrian bridge span and the elevator/stair tower. 
 
HVAC, Electrical and Plumbing Design 
 
Edmonds Engineering, as a subconsultant to GS&P, will perform the design and prepare plans 
for the HVAC, electrical and plumbing for the project.  The majority of these services will be 
related to the elevator/stair tower.  Edmonds will also provide lighting design and plans for 
functional and aesthetic lighting for the elevator/stair tower and the walking surface of the 
pedestrian bridge.   
 
Edmonds scope of services includes: 
  

1. Plumbing to include sump pump for elevator pit and oil interceptor if elevator is hydraulic.  
2. HVAC to include air conditioning system for elevator equipment room.  

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



3. Electrical to include: New electrical service to the elevator tower. Edmonds will 
coordinate the power service and power feed to the elevator/stair tower with Alabama 
Power Company. 

4. Lighting and receptacles for elevator tower and bridge.  
5. Auxiliary systems to include fire alarm as required.  
6. Complete drawings and copy ready specifications suitable for competitive bids and 

construction.  
7. Meetings and other required interface with Architects, Contractor and Code Officials.  
8. Required submittals to state agencies for approval.  
9. Edmonds will coordinate the communications feed to the elevator/stair tower with the 

City’s designated communications provider. 
 
Edmonds scope of services does not include: 

1. Design for “fast-track” construction 
2. Design of any utilities 5’-0” outside of the elevator/stair tower with the exception of the 

power service (see above). 
3. Design of a fire pump for fire protection system 
4. Design of a domestic water pressure booster system 
5. LEED certification 
6. Onsite sewage disposal system 
7. Hardware for telephone and data systems 
8. Field testing, including HVAC balancing, recording of electrical use profiles, and sprinkler 

flow tests. 
9. Seismic design for components 
10. Water analysis testing including, but not limited to, hardness, microbiological, and ph in 

compliance with the “Standard for EPA Water Testing”, ASTM G-4-84 Corrosion Testing 
and the “Standard Method for Examination of Water and Wastewater”. 

11. Water supply study, modeling or charting. 
 
See Edmonds detailed scope of services in their attached proposal dated March 6, 2018. 
 
Geotechnical Exploration and Recommendations 
 
Because the location of the proposed pedestrian bridge is being shifted about 45’ the south of 
the original location, ALDOT requires that the geotechnical investigation and foundation 
recommendations be updated based on the new bridge location.  Terracon, as a subconsultant 
to GS&P, will perform geotechnical exploration and foundation recommendations for the new 
location of the pedestrian bridge and elevator/stair tower.  Terracon will also perform 
geotechnical exploration and provide recommendations for any required retaining walls.  See 
Terracon’s detailed scope of services in their attached proposal dated August 23, 2017. 
 
The Geotechnical Exploration and Recommendations report will be submitted to ALDOT for 
review and approval.  Extensive ALDOT review times, multiple revisions and resubmittals to 
ALDOT, or major changes required by ALDOT to the Geotechnical Exploration and 
Recommendations report are subject to additional compensation. 
 
SCOPE EXCLUSIONS 
 
The following items are not included in GS&P’s scope of services: 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



1. Landscaping or irrigation plans – landscaping will be handled by the City outside of this 
project 

2. Security system or cameras for bridge 
3. Signage, except for signage required by code or deemed necessary for the safe and 

efficient use of the pedestrian bridge and connecting sidewalks. 
4. Construction phase services – construction engineering and inspection (CE&I) services 

will be handled under a separate agreement prior to construction of the project 
5. Preparation of advertising, bidding and construction contract documents, advertising and 

bidding services – the project will be advertised and bid by ALDOT.  ALDOT will prepare 
the construction contract, advertising and bidding documents. 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



    OAR No. 17.040.01 
_______ 

 

August 21, 2017                  

Mr. Marc Thompson 

Gresham, Smith and Partners 

3595 Grandview Parkway, Suite 300 

Birmingham, Alabama 35243 

 
Re: Cultural Resources Survey for a Proposed Pedestrian Trail in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, 
Alabama 
 
 
Dear Mr. Thompson, 

 

The University of Alabama Museums, Office of Archaeological Research (OAR) is pleased to submit this 
research design and cost estimate for the proposed Cultural Resources Survey for a proposed pedestrian trail in 
Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama.  Included in this proposal package are a Statement of Work, Work 
Schedule, Budget, and Project Information Request Form.  The Statement of Work, found in Attachment I, 
contains a description of the work to be done by The University of Alabama Office of Archaeological Research, 
as well as additional information relevant to this project.  The Work Schedule, found in Attachment II, displays 
the estimated timetable for completing the work as outlined in Attachment I.  The Budget, found in Attachment 
III, contains an itemized estimation of costs as it relates to the Statement of Work.   

The University of Alabama, Office of Archaeological Research looks forward to applying its expertise and 
experience to this project.  In the instance of acceptance, please forward notification to Sam Mizelle to initiate 
the Contract process.  The University of Alabama will promptly provide a Contract for execution upon a notice 
of acceptance.  

If you have any questions or comments about the proposal package, please do not hesitate to contact the Office 
of Archaeological Research.  Thank you for your consideration.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

Sam Mizelle 

Cultural Resources Investigator/IT Manager 
The University of Alabama, Office of Archaeological Research

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



                                                                                            OAR No. 17.040.01 

 

 

Statement of Work  

 

Project Information 

Project Title: Cultural Resources Survey for Proposed Pedestrian Trail in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson 
County, Alabama 

Sponsoring Company/Agency: Gresham, Smith and Partners 

Point of Contact Info: Marc Thompson / Sam Mizelle 

Principal Investigator: Matt Gage 

 

 

Description of Work 

 

The University of Alabama Museums, Office of Archaeological Research (OAR) is pleased to submit this 
research design and cost estimate for a cultural resources survey for a proposed Pedestrian Trail in 
Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama (Figure 1). All phases of the research will be conducted in 
compliance with the guidelines set forth by the Department of the Interior and the Alabama Historical 
Commission (AHC) for Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA) of 1966 as 
amended 2006 (16 USC 470) and its implementing regulations (36 CFR 800). It is understood that the 
proposed undertaking is being funded with federal dollars. As such accounting will follow Office of 
Management and Budget Uniform Guidance (2 CFR, Part 200). Included with this research design is an 
itemized estimation of costs as it relates to the Statement of Work. The budget has been prepared in 
reliance upon the information provided by your organization.  

A cultural resources survey generally involves a literature/records search and an actual on-site field 
survey.  A literature/records search will identify any National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) 
properties which may be located in the project area, as well as previously recorded archaeological sites, 
historic and prehistoric, in the vicinity.   

Field investigations will include a pedestrian survey of the entire proposed project area.  Both 
archaeological and structural (historic) resources will be considered.  Field techniques will include visual 
inspection of exposed surface areas, and the employment of 30 cm (12 in) diameter shovel tests spaced at 
30 m (98 ft) intervals along survey transects spaced at 30 m (98 ft).  Shovel tests will be excavated to a 
maximum of 70 cm (27.6 in) or until sterile subsoil is encountered.  All excavated material will be 

ATTACHMENT I 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



    OAR No. 17.040.01 
_______ 

 

screened through 6.35 mm (0.25 in) hardware mesh in an effort to recover and identify cultural material.  
Each survey team will be equipped with a hand held GPS receiver to record any archaeological sites, 
shovel test and photograph locations, anthropogenic features, and other pertinent characteristics 
encountered during the field survey.  In the event that an archaeological site is encountered, an assessment 
of NRHP eligibility is necessary based on criteria established by the National Park Service (NPS). 

Should a site not be considered eligible for the NRHP, then the site will be recommended as ineligible for 
listing to the NRHP and that the proposed undertaking is not considered likely to have an adverse effect.  
Should a site be considered potentially eligible for the NRHP it will be recommended as having the 
potential for adverse effect on a significant cultural resource based on applicable NPS criteria.  Also, this 
survey will identify historic structures, defined as 50 years or older.  Historic structures will be evaluated 
to Phase I standards regarding their NRHP eligibility also in accordance with NPS guidelines. 

Deliverables 

A report will be prepared detailing our Phase I investigations in the field and laboratory.  Recommenda-
tions of potential affect for historic properties will be generated in the report.  This report must be 
submitted to and approved by the lead Agency in accordance with Section 106 of the NHPA. 

  

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



Office of Archaeological Research, 2012
0 250 500125

Meters

Gresham Smith & Partners
Pedestrian Walkway
Vestavia, Alabama

p

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



    OAR No. 17.040.01 
_______ 

 

Schedule of Work 

 

Background Research/Field Work   1 day 

Laboratory Analysis and Report Production  1 week 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The official Period of Performance for this project will be established by final binding Contract.  
Authorization or notice to proceed dates must fall within the Period of Performance as stated in the 
Contract. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT II 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



    OAR No. 17.040.01 
_______ 

 

 

Budget 

 

Cost Proposal 
Cultural Resources Survey for a Proposed  

Pedestrian Trail in Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

Salaries & Wages $1,232.64 
Benefits $431.42 

Subtotal Salaries, Wages, Benefits $1,664.07 

Travel $92.70 
Operating (Supplies, Phone, 
Postage, etc.) $60.00 
Curation $102.50 

Subtotal Operating Expense $255.20 

F&A (@ 26% MTDC) $499.01 

GRAND TOTAL $2,418.28 
 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT III 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



6/15/2018 Alabama Department of Transportation 5:16 PM

  Project No.  
  County Jefferson

Description Vestavia Ped Bridge
Scope of Work  

   Project Length 0.50 Miles

Consultant Sain Associates

PLS Crew Tech/CADD Clerical

              Based on a 0 Man Crew
Task A: Mobilization and Basic Control Survey     
A-1  Mobilize/Demobilize 0.10 0.25 0.00 0.00
A-2  Contact Property Owners
A-3  Perform Basic Control Survey
A-4  Conduct On-site Inspection 0.20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task A Totals 0.30 0.25 0.00 0.00

  
Task B: Project Alignment and Profile     
B-1  Run Closure of Basic Control Survey/Prepare Closure Diagram
B-2  Establish Centerline/Obtain Ground Profile
B-3  Obtain Topographic Data 0.00 0.75 0.50 0.00

Task B Totals 0.00 0.75 0.50 0.00

    
Task C: Supplemental Control Surveys and Data Gathering     
C-1  Traverse Cross-Roads and Railroads
C-2  Stream Topography & Cross Sections/Complete HYD-100 & 101 Forms
C-3  Define Drainage Areas/Prepare Schematic Drainage Map
C-4  Obtain Cross-Sections at 20 Meter Intervals and Ground Break Points

 FIELD SURVEY

Form Revised 09-13-05

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



6/15/2018 Alabama Department of Transportation 5:16 PM

PLS Crew Tech/CADD Clerical FIELD SURVEY

Task C Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      
Task D: Utility Surveys, Drainage Sections and Compilation of Data     
D-1  Identify/Locate Utilities
D-2  Obtain Hydrological Location Survey
D-3  Tie All Available Section Corners & All Available Front Corners
        of Affected Properties to Project Centerline
D-4  Obtain Copies of Latest Deeds
D-5  Set & Reference PIs, PCs, POTs, POCs, & other critical points
D-6  Reduce Survey Field Notes 0.10 0.00 0.00 0.00
D-7  Submit Work for Review/Sealed Mylar Plot of Accepted Field Map 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Task D Totals 0.60 0.00 0.00 0.00

     
TOTALS 0.90 1.00 0.50 0.00

Form Revised 09-13-05

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777



2 Riverchase Office Plaza 
Suite 205 

Hoover, AL 35244 
(205) 988-2069 

 

 

March 6, 2018 

 

Gresham, Smith & Partners 

3595 Grandview Parkway 

Birmingham, AL  35243 

 

ATTENTION:    ROBERT MURPHY 

SUBJECT:   VESTAVIA PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE 

EDMONDS PROJECT NO.:  BHM18026 

   

Dear Robert: 

 

We are pleased to offer the following proposal for the design of the HVAC, Electrical 
and Plumbing systems for the subject project. 

Proposal is based on AIA Document C401 as herein amended. 

FACILITY  

Addition of a new Pedestrian Bridge in Vestavia. Bridge to cross over Highway 31, near 
the Vestavia Library and Wald Park.  

PROJECT SCOPE / DESIGN SERVICES 

1. Plumbing to include sump pump for elevator pit and oil interceptor if elevator is 
hydraulic.  

2. HVAC to include air conditioning system for elevator equipment room.  

3. Electrical to include: New electrical service to the elevator tower. Lighting and 
receptacles for elevator tower and bridge.  

4. Auxiliary systems to include fire alarm as required.  

5. Complete drawings and copy ready specifications suitable for competitive bids and 
construction.  Drawings and documents furnished for each deliverable will be paper 
plans and specifications. 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777

http://www.edmondsengineering.com/


6. Building Information Modeling (BIM) work to a Level of Development (LOD) 300 as 
following:  

• Model Content Requirements. Model Elements are modeled as assemblies 
accurate, within described range of tolerance, in terms of quantity, size, 
shape, location, and orientation. Non-geometric information may also be 
attached to Model Elements.  

• Authorized Uses:  

o Construction. The model is suitable for the generation of traditional 
construction documents (e.g. bidding, permit submittal).  

o Analysis. The Model may be analyzed by the design team for 
performance of selected systems by application of specific 
performance criteria assigned to the representative Model Elements.  

o Cost Estimating. The Model may be used by the design team to 
develop cost estimates based on the specific data provided and 
conceptual estimating techniques.  

o Schedule. The Model may be used to show ordered, time-scaled 
appearance of detailed elements and systems.  

o Other Authorized Uses. (LEED or sustainable design analysis, 
Collision Detection, etc.) Additional authorized uses of the Model 
developed to a Level 300, if any, are as follows: Not Applicable.  

Note: Not all model elements will be developed to this level. 

7. Meetings and other required interface with Architects, Contractor and Code Officials. 

8. Required submittals to state agencies for approval. 

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION PERIOD SERVICES (NOT IN SCOPE OF WORK) 

 

SITE VISITS AND / OR MEETINGS 

We have included the following maximum number of site visits and / or meetings: 

(1) – Survey   

NOT INCLUDED 

Our Proposal does not include the following: 

1. Any printing or plotting other than for internal and coordination purposes. 

2. Any site visits, except as noted above. 

3. Design for “Fast Track” construction. 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777

http://www.edmondsengineering.com/


4. Any utilities 5’-0” outside the building. 

5. Design of a fire pump for the fire protection system. 

6. Design of a domestic water pressure booster system. 

7. LEED certification. 

8. Advertising for bids. 

9. Storm drainage. 

10. Sewage lift station or onsite sewage disposal. 

11. As-built drawings. 

12. Hardware for telephone and data systems. 

13. Field testing, including HVAC balancing, recording of electrical use profiles, and 
sprinkler flow tests. 

14. Seismic design for components. 

15. Water analysis testing including, but not limited to, hardness, microbiological, and ph 
in compliance with the “Standard for EPA Water Testing”, ASTM G-4-84 Corrosion 
Testing and the “Standard Method for Examination of Water and Wastewater”. 

16. Water supply study, modeling or charting. 

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY CLIENT 

The Client agrees to furnish Edmonds Engineering, Inc. with the following: 

1. A floor plan of the facility in Revit or Autocad format. 

2. Architectural plans or computer files as required to define the construction of the 
facility, including building sections, elevations, and details.  

3. A list of all appliances and/or specialty equipment indicating complete requirements 
for all applicable connection, including: hot and cold water piping, steam piping, 
condensate piping, waste piping, gas vent, make-up air, and exhaust. 

FEE   

Per your request, we offer an hourly not to exceed  

MEP design fee as follows:       $5,000.00                

PAYMENT 

Will be the same payment schedule the architect is compensated under i.e. at 
completion of Design Development Phase: 25% and Construction Documents Phase: 
75%. 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777

http://www.edmondsengineering.com/


Should the project be abandoned or canceled, payment shall be made based on time 
expended at the hourly rates listed below. 

 

Any payments due over 60 days shall be subject to interest of 1 ½% per month, and we 
reserve the right to stop work until payment is received. Reasonable Attorney’s fees that 
we incur for collections shall be paid by the client. 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Edmonds Engineering, Inc. may also perform additional services not included above at 
the request of the Client. Additional services, which can be performed hourly at the rates 
listed below, may include, but shall not be limited to: 

1. Design work not within the “Scope of Work”. 

2. Detailed cost estimates. 

3. Additional work which is due to the “Information Provided by Client” being 
incomplete. 

4. Additional site visitation. 

5. Energy Analysis. 

6. Subjective HVAC system comparison and report of recommendations. 

7. Review of “Value Engineering Items” and incorporation of items into the contract 
documents. 

8. Excessive revisions to drawings or specifications inconsistent with instructions 
previously given. 

9. Consultations made necessary by major defects in Contractor’s work. 

 

Hourly Fee  

CEO $175 / hr. 

Regional Manager $150 / hr. 

Group Manager $140 / hr. 

Account Manager $125 / hr. 

Sr. Project Manager $120 / hr. 

Project Manager $110 / hr. 

Project Engineer $100 / hr. 

Field Engineer/CA $95 / hr. 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777

http://www.edmondsengineering.com/


Designer $90 / hr. 

CAD Operator $70 / hr. 

Administrator/Clerical $60 / hr. 

 

PER DIEM 

There is no per diem on this project. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. We look forward to working with 
you. If you have any questions, please call. 

 

 

Sincerely,      Accepted by, 

 

EDMONDS ENGINEERING, INC.   Gresham, Smith & Partners 

 

             

Phillip Graydon, PE     Signature, Title & Date  

PROJECT MANAGER 

 

Exhibit A - Scope of Services 
Exhibit to Exhibit A - Ord.. No. 2777

http://www.edmondsengineering.com/


Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2777



Resolution Number 5073 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5073 
 
A RESOLUTION DEDICATING CERTAIN STREETS IN LIBERTY PARK TO THE 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 15, 1985, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills approved 

and adopted Ordinance Number 751, which in substance, and in very general terms, provides that 

an acceptance of a dedication can only be accomplished by the approval by the City Council of a 

formal resolution adopted at a regularly scheduled meeting or a special meeting called for that 

specific purpose and that the developer who offers dedication of land for public streets and roads 

must execute and deliver an agreement guarantying that all improvements for construction of 

public streets and roads will meet city requirements; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance Number 751 provides, among other things as follows: 
 

“The City shall not accept the dedication until such time as every lot 
in the subdivision as shown on the plat has been developed with the 
construction of a home or other building;” and 
 

 WHEREAS, on September 30, 1992, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) and 

Liberty Park Joint Venture (“LPJV”) entered into an Annexation Agreement which provides in 

Section 9 on Page 18 of said agreement as follows: 

“9.1.  LPJV agrees to pay the cost of the installation of all fireplugs 
required by state or municipal regulations for the Development.  In 
addition, LPJV agrees to pay the cost of the first three (3) years 
rental, at standard rental charges, on such fireplugs. 
9.2.  The City will not be required to provide landscaping 
maintenance to any intensely landscaped areas of the Development 
located on public rights-of-way.  The City will grant LPJV such 
access and easements to the public rights-of-way necessary to 
landscape and maintain any such public rights-of-way. 
9.3.  LPJV agrees to install at its sole expense any and all initial 
street lighting required by state or municipal regulations for the 
Development at the time of the initial development of the 
Development, and LPJV shall have the right to install, at its expense, 
any additional or decorative lighting LPJV deems appropriate in the 
Development;” and  
 



Resolution Number 5073 
Page 2 

 

 WHEREAS, On October 7, 1992, the Legislature of the State of Alabama enacted Act 

Number 92-708, a local law, which annexed the Liberty Park property to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, the Liberty Park property was not fully and completely developed at the time 

of its annexation to the City and 

 WHEREAS, the streets and roadways were not offered for dedication by LPJV or accepted 

by the City; and 

 WHEREAS, on May 19, 1994, a lawsuit was filed in the Civil Division of the Circuit 

Court of Jefferson County, Alabama, that challenged the validity of the annexation; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 13, 1995, the Supreme Court of Alabama decided the case of The 

City of Birmingham, et al v. City of Vestavia Hills, 654 So 2d.532(1995) and held that the 

annexation is valid and legally binding; and 

 WHEREAS, LPJV has offered to the City dedication of certain streets and roadways on 

and in the Liberty Park property subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of an agreement 

by and between the City and LPJV regarding the future responsibilities of repair and maintenance 

of said streets, roadways and rights-of-way.  Said streets, roadways and rights-of-way are detailed 

in the attached Exhibit A which is incorporated into this Resolution Number 5073 by reference as 

though set out fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City and LPJV have negotiated an amendment to the Annexation 

Agreement regarding the legal responsibility for the future maintenance and repair of the streets, 

roadways and rights-of-way offered for dedication by LPJV; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the amendment to the Annexation Agreement is attached hereto, 

marked as Exhibit B and is incorporated into this Resolution Number 5073 by reference as though 

set out fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that the acceptance of the offer of dedication 

of certain streets, roadways and rights-of-way as detailed in Exhibit A in and on the Liberty Park 

property by LPJV subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of Exhibit B will provide for the 

safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and 

convenience of the inhabitants of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Resolution Number 5073 
Page 3 

 

1. All streets, roadways and rights-of-way including those portions of Liberty Parkway, River 

Run Lane and Lake Parkway as described in the attached Exhibit A are hereby dedicated 

subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of Exhibit B; and 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of July, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 1
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

11
:2

7:
52

 A
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 2
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

11
:3

7:
32

 A
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 3
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

11
:2

9:
16

 A
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 4
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

11
:3

0:
32

 A
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 5
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

11
:3

1:
41

 A
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 6
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

1:
04

:4
5 

P
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 7
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

11
:3

4:
11

 A
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 8
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

11
:3

4:
56

 A
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



L
ib

er
ty

 P
ar

k 
R

oa
dw

ay
 D

ed
ic

at
io

n 
S

he
et

 9
.d

gn
 7

/5
/2

01
8 

11
:3

5:
31

 A
M

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5073



EXHIBIT B 

Liberty Park Roadway Maintenance Agreement and Amendment to the 
Liberty Park Annexation Agreement 

City Responsibilities: 

Any and all maintenance performed by the City on the subject roadway shall be at the direction 
and discretion of the City Manager/City Engineer and shall include the following items within 
the publically dedicated right-of-way of the subject roadways: 

1. Roadway Surface and Roadbed Maintenance 
2. Traffic Control – This includes, but is not limited to, striping, markings, signals*, traffic 

control signage, and associated items serving side road connections.  *Signal 
maintenance is anticipated to be added to Jefferson County Roads and Transportation 
maintenance agreement. 

3. Drainage – The City shall maintain drainage of cross drains under the road.  The City will 
work in conjunction with Owner to maintain all roadside inlets and drains that contribute 
flow to these cross drains.  

4. Utilities – The City will review applications for permits, direct, and inspect all utilities to 
be placed, repaired, or otherwise altered within the right-of-way of the roadway in 
accordance with City requirements and regulations. 

5. Road side hazard determination – The City has review and permitting authority for any 
encroachments of the roadway that could be considered a safety hazard per ALDOT 
specifications.  (example -- illegal signs, fences, retaining walls, headwalls, non-
breakaway mailboxes, etc.)  The City recognizes this will be in coordination with 
Owner’s ARC or other owner design review approvals. 

6. Access Permits – The City shall have review and permitting authority for any requests for 
side road or driveway access to the roadway.  This will be reviewed and permitted per 
City Engineering standards. The City recognizes this will be in coordination with 
Owner’s ARC or other owner design review approvals. 

7. Other – The City is considered to have permission from the Owner to perform services 
not expressly named in this document within the right-of-way of the roadway that are 
considered to be in the best interest of public safety (including, but not limited to sand 
application during an ice or snow event). 

8. No denied access to the Public right-of-way will be allowed.  Any pre-existing gates 
along the subject roadways are to be removed by owner at no cost to the City. 

Owner Responsibilities: 

The Owner shall be responsible for maintenance and installation of the following: 

Exhibit B - Resolution Number 5073



1. Vegetation- the Owner will maintain and manage all vegetation, landscaping, lighting, 
irrigation, along the right-of-way, including roadside, medians, and roundabout areas. 

2. Pedestrian Ways – any sidewalks, crosswalks, disabled access ramps, or other features of 
this nature shall be the responsibility of the Owner. 

3. Guardrails 
4. Curb and Gutter; drainage inlet tops, grates, and covers; manhole and other utility covers. 
5. Street and directional signage – The Owner has responsibility to install and maintain 

street signs and other directional signage.  This is subject to City discretion for any 
potential road side hazard considerations. 

6. Dam and Lake Embankments – The Owner shall retain responsibility for all dam and lake 
embankment maintenance, including periodic inspections and routine maintenance on 
outlet controls, erosion stabilization, and vegetation management.  This shall include 
management of water levels to minimize impact to the roadway. 

7. Other – The Owner shall notify the City of any proposed work within the right-of-way of 
the subject roadways.  All work shall be reviewed and inspected by the City Engineer and 
his/her staff and determined to meet City specifications as determined by the City 
Engineer. 

The Owner shall perform all listed Owner responsibilities.  Should the Owner not perform these 
responsibilities, the City is authorized to perform the work that must be done in the interest of 
public safety and/or improving any situation that without attention would adversely impact the 
roadway.  The City may bill the Owner for the costs incurred by the City for labor, equipment, 
and materials for the said work. 

Agreed to  

Liberty Park Joint Venture 

By:_______________________________ 

Its:________________________________ 

Date:______________________________ 

 

City of Vestavia Hills 

By: _______________________________ 

Ashley Curry 

Its:  Mayor 

Date:______________________________ 

By:________________________________ 

Jeffrey Downes 

Its: City Manager 

Date:____________________________ 

Exhibit B - Resolution Number 5073



Ordinance Number 2778 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2778 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH 
LIBERTY PARK JOINT VENTURE FOR MAINTENANCE OF CERTAIN 
STREETS, ROADWAYS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY DEDICATED WITH 
THE ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NUMBER 5073 

 
 WHEREAS, on July 23, 2018 following a public hearing, the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, adopted and approved Resolution Number 5073 accepting the dedication 

of certain streets, roads and rights-of-ways in Liberty Park pursuant to the terms and conditions of 

a certain maintenance agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said maintenance agreement is marked as Exhibit A, attached to 

and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2778 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to authorize 

the Mayor and City Manager to execute and deliver said maintenance agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said 

maintenance agreement as shown in the attached Exhibit A; and 

2. This Ordinance Number 2788 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 23rd day of July, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2778 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2778 is a true and correct copy of such 
Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day 
of July, 2018 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia Hills New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2018. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



EXHIBIT B 

Liberty Park Roadway Maintenance Agreement and Amendment to the 
Liberty Park Annexation Agreement 

City Responsibilities: 

Any and all maintenance performed by the City on the subject roadway shall be at the direction 
and discretion of the City Manager/City Engineer and shall include the following items within 
the publically dedicated right-of-way of the subject roadways: 

1. Roadway Surface and Roadbed Maintenance 
2. Traffic Control – This includes, but is not limited to, striping, markings, signals*, traffic 

control signage, and associated items serving side road connections.  *Signal 
maintenance is anticipated to be added to Jefferson County Roads and Transportation 
maintenance agreement. 

3. Drainage – The City shall maintain drainage of cross drains under the road.  The City will 
work in conjunction with Owner to maintain all roadside inlets and drains that contribute 
flow to these cross drains.  

4. Utilities – The City will review applications for permits, direct, and inspect all utilities to 
be placed, repaired, or otherwise altered within the right-of-way of the roadway in 
accordance with City requirements and regulations. 

5. Road side hazard determination – The City has review and permitting authority for any 
encroachments of the roadway that could be considered a safety hazard per ALDOT 
specifications.  (example -- illegal signs, fences, retaining walls, headwalls, non-
breakaway mailboxes, etc.)  The City recognizes this will be in coordination with 
Owner’s ARC or other owner design review approvals. 

6. Access Permits – The City shall have review and permitting authority for any requests for 
side road or driveway access to the roadway.  This will be reviewed and permitted per 
City Engineering standards. The City recognizes this will be in coordination with 
Owner’s ARC or other owner design review approvals. 

7. Other – The City is considered to have permission from the Owner to perform services 
not expressly named in this document within the right-of-way of the roadway that are 
considered to be in the best interest of public safety (including, but not limited to sand 
application during an ice or snow event). 

8. No denied access to the Public right-of-way will be allowed.  Any pre-existing gates 
along the subject roadways are to be removed by owner at no cost to the City. 

Owner Responsibilities: 

The Owner shall be responsible for maintenance and installation of the following: 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2778



1. Vegetation- the Owner will maintain and manage all vegetation, landscaping, lighting, 
irrigation, along the right-of-way, including roadside, medians, and roundabout areas. 

2. Pedestrian Ways – any sidewalks, crosswalks, disabled access ramps, or other features of 
this nature shall be the responsibility of the Owner. 

3. Guardrails 
4. Curb and Gutter; drainage inlet tops, grates, and covers; manhole and other utility covers. 
5. Street and directional signage – The Owner has responsibility to install and maintain 

street signs and other directional signage.  This is subject to City discretion for any 
potential road side hazard considerations. 

6. Dam and Lake Embankments – The Owner shall retain responsibility for all dam and lake 
embankment maintenance, including periodic inspections and routine maintenance on 
outlet controls, erosion stabilization, and vegetation management.  This shall include 
management of water levels to minimize impact to the roadway. 

7. Other – The Owner shall notify the City of any proposed work within the right-of-way of 
the subject roadways.  All work shall be reviewed and inspected by the City Engineer and 
his/her staff and determined to meet City specifications as determined by the City 
Engineer. 

The Owner shall perform all listed Owner responsibilities.  Should the Owner not perform these 
responsibilities, the City is authorized to perform the work that must be done in the interest of 
public safety and/or improving any situation that without attention would adversely impact the 
roadway.  The City may bill the Owner for the costs incurred by the City for labor, equipment, 
and materials for the said work. 

Agreed to  

Liberty Park Joint Venture 

By:_______________________________ 

Its:________________________________ 

Date:______________________________ 

 

City of Vestavia Hills 

By: _______________________________ 

Ashley Curry 

Its:  Mayor 

Date:______________________________ 

By:________________________________ 

Jeffrey Downes 

Its: City Manager 

Date:____________________________ 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2778



Resolution Number 5074 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5074 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO REDUCE THE CORPORATE 

LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, AND THE BOUNDARIES THEREOF 
REESTABLISHED 

 
WHEREAS, on HealthSouth is the owner of property described as Lot 1, 

HealthSouth Headquarters Addition to Liberty Park (MB 243, MP 1) and located on 

Liberty Parkway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, a portion of Lot 1, HealthSouth Headquarters Addition to Liberty 

Park (“hereinafter knowns as “The Property”) lies within the corporate limits of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, said portion is illustrated and more particularly described in a map and 

legal description marked as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 5074 as though written fully therein; and  

WHEREAS, Arthur E. Wilson Jr., Chief Real Estate Officer for HealthSouth in a 

letter dated August 15, 2016 has filed a petition with the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills requesting de-annexation of The Property that lies within the City of 

Vestavia Hills corporate limits, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit B, attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 5074 as though written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council agree it is in the best public interest to grant 

HealthSouth’s request determining that The Property described in Exhibit A located on 

Liberty Parkway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama is of no benefit to the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1.  This action is taken pursuant to the authority set forth in Title 11-42-200, et. 

seq., Code of Alabama, 1975; and 



Resolution Number 5074 
Page 2 

 2.  That petition signed by Arthur E. Wilson, Jr., HealthSouth, represents as owner 

of The Property; and 

 3.  The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, has determined and 

decided that the public good requires that the request of HealthSouth is due to be granted; 

and 

 4.  That the legal description of the property to be de-annexed is described as 

follows: 

A portion of Lot 1, HealthSouth Headquarters Addition to Liberty Park (MB 243, MP 1) 
HealthSouth, owner 

 
More Particularly described as follows: 
 

A part of Lot 1, HealthSouth Headquarters Addition to Liberty Park, as 
recorded in Map Book 243, Page 1 in the Office of the Judge of Probate of 
Jefferson County, Alabama, being situated in the N.E. 1/4 of the S.W. 1/4 
of Section 12, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, and being more particularly described as follows: Begin at the 
Easternmost corner of Lot 1, HealthSouth Headquarters Addition to Liberty 
Park, said point also being on the Northwesterly line of Liberty Parkway (a 
private road); thence in a Southwesterly direction along the Southeasterly 
line of said Lot 1 and the Northwesterly line of Liberty Parkway a distance 
of 44.70 feet to a point; thence 94º00’05” to the right in a Northwesterly 
direction (leaving Liberty Parkway) a distance of 245.65 feet to a point on 
the Northeasterly line of said Lot 1; thence 169º34’56” to the right in a 
Southeasterly direction along the Northeasterly line of said Lot 1 a distance 
of 246.59 feet to the Point of Beginning.  Containing 5,477 square feet or 
0.126 acre. 

 
 5.  The property owned by HealthSouth located in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described in paragraph 4 above is hereby 

de-annexed from the corporate city limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 6.  The corporate limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, are hereby reduced 

so as to exclude the territory described in paragraph 4 above and the boundaries of the City 

are hereby re-established accordingly. 



Resolution Number 5074 
Page 3 

 7.  That pursuant to Section 11-42-201 of the Code of Alabama, 1975, the Clerk 

shall certify a copy of such Resolution, together with a plat or map correctly defining the 

corporate limits proposed to be established and the names of all qualified electors residing 

in the territory proposed to be excluded from the area of such corporation and file the same 

with the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23rd day of July, 

2018. 

 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Resolution 5074 is a true and 
correct copy of such Resolution that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 23rd day of July, 2018, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5074



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

CITY OF VESTAVIA 

DEANNEXATION PARCEL 

 

A part of Lot 1, HealthSouth Headquarters Addition to Liberty Park, as recorded in Map Book 

243, Page 1 in the office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, being situated in 

the N.E. 1/4 of the S.W. 1/4 of Section 12, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, 

Alabama, and being more particularly described as follows: 

 

Begin at the Easternmost corner of Lot 1, HealthSouth Headquarters Addition to Liberty Park, 

said point also being on the Northwesterly line of Liberty Parkway (a private road); thence in a 

Southwesterly direction along the Southeasterly line of said Lot 1 and the Northwesterly line of 

Liberty Parkway a distance of 44.70 feet to a point; thence 94º00’05” to the right in a 

Northwesterly direction (leaving Liberty Parkway) a distance of 245.65 feet to a point on the 

Northeasterly line of said Lot 1; thence 169º34’56” to the right in a Southeasterly direction along 

the Northeasterly line of said Lot 1 a distance of 246.59 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

 Containing 5,477 square feet or 0.126 acre. 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5074



0

August 15, 2016

City of Vestavia
103 2 Montgomery Hwy
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216
Attention: Rebecca Leavings
City Clerk/Zoning Official

Re: Liberty Park Development

HealthSouth Corporation is the owner of Lot 1 according to the Plat of HealthSouth

Headquarters Addition to Liberty Park, recorded on May 16, 2015 in Map Book 243, Page 1 in

the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. Lot 1 is currently within the

city limits of the City of Birmingham and the city limits of the City of Vestavia as shown on the

attached Exhibit A. By this letter, HealthSouth Corporation requests that the portion of Lot 1

located within the city limits of Vestavia Hills be de-annexed from Vestavia Hills (for

annexation to the City of Birmingham).

Please consider this letter as HealthSouth's petition to de-annex the indicated portion of

Lot 1 as shown on Exhibit A. Thank you.

Yours very truly,

t~/~
~,

Arthur E. Nilson, Jr.
Chief Real Estate Officer

3660 Grandview Parkway, Suite 200 •Birmingham, AL 35243

205 96 7- 7 7 7 6 • F~ 205 262-8 708
www. healthsouth. com

HLS

NYSE.

Exhibit B - Resolution No. 5074


	2018_0709CC_A
	2018_0618CC_work session
	2018_0625CC_m 
	Resolution 5068
	Resolution 5071
	Resolution 5072
	Ordinance 2774
	Ordinance 2776
	Ordinance 2777

	Resolution 5073
	Ordinance 2778
	Resolution 5074



